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CORPORATE STATEMENTS

OUR VISION

To be a trusted partner for our unit holders and the leading Managed Fund in the South Pacific.

OUR MISSION

We aspire to be the market leader in managed funds by exceeding our customer’s expectations at all times. 

We will grow our managed fund portfolio and provide our unit holders and shareholders with the maximum sustainable return on their investment. We 
will aspire to have the best corporate governance standards and practices.

CORE BUSINESS

To maximize unit holders’ wealth through the high-quality investment products that are affordable and offer competitive returns and in doing so 
maximize our shareholders’ values.

ORGANISATIONAL VALUES

PASSION – all employees are passionate:

• About work we do and take pride in delivering the best in all we do.

• Developing the right capabilities to unlock our strategic directions.

• About positively contributing to society by building meaningful relationships to grow our impact into society.

INTEGRITY – all employees must:
 

• Act with fairness, honesty, transparency and accountability.

• Foster diversity, ethics and inclusion in all function of our business.

• Passionate about work and take pride in delivering the best in all we do. 

INNOVATION – all employees:
 

 · Are to change the way we lead the Company into the future to explore new opportunity and challenge current ways of working.

 · Will need to come out of our comfort zones in order to change.

COURAGE – all employees: 

 · Are not afraid to responsibly speak up, collaborate for solutions, act and make a valuable difference.

 · Boldly execute our ambitions and fully own tough decisions that we make.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
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Series1 Series1
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Dividend (%) Growth (%)
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Investment Portfolio

Table 1

Listed securities 6.24292191824018%

Listed securities Overseas 8%
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Unlisted Investment 20%

Managed funds 1%

Government Bonds 6%
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8%

1

Listed Securities Listed Securities Overseas
Managed Funds Overseas Unlisted Investment
Managed Funds Government Bonds
Corporate Bonds Term Deposits
Cash

Cash
20.14%

Term Deposits
19.18%

Corporate Bonds
2.11%

Government Bonds
5.08%

Managed Funds
0.66%

Unlisted Investment
14.26%

Managed Funds Overseas
1.55%

Listed Securities Overseas
7.71%

Listed Securities
29.30%

Table 1

Listed securities 6.24292191824018%

Listed securities Overseas 8%

Managed funds Overseas 2%

Unlisted Investment 20%

Managed funds 1%

Government Bonds 6%

Corporate Bonds 3%

Term Deposits 17%

Cash 15%

Managed funds
1%

Unlisted Investment
26%

Managed funds Overseas
3%

Listed securities Overseas
10%

Listed securities
8%

1

Listed Securities Listed Securities Overseas
Managed Funds Overseas Unlisted Investment
Managed Funds Government Bonds
Corporate Bonds Term Deposits
Cash

Cash
15.37%
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PORTFOLIO BY SECTOR

Communication/Information/Media

Finance

Manufacturing

Amalgamated Telecom Holdings Limited

Fiji TV Limited

Communication (Fiji) Limited

2.67%

0.23%

0.77%

10.42%

0.04%

0.42%

BSP Convertible Notes

Kontiki Finance Limited

Fijicare Insurance Limited

Merchant Finance

Sun Insurance Limited

1.60%

0.36%

0.57%

11.42%

2.47%

Atlantic & Pacific Packaging Limited

FMF Foods Limited

Pacific Green Industries (Fiji) Ltd

Retail

RB Patel Group Ltd

Tourism

Port Denarau Marina Limited

Transportation

Toyota Tsusho Limited

VB Holdings Ltd

Vision Investments Limited

0.16%

0.63%

4.20%

39.32%

7.19%

9.26%

0.66%

Education

Cash & Fixed Interest Securities

Bonds

Overseas

Managed Funds

Free Bird Institute Limited

Pleass Global Limited

Rice Company Of Fiji

Punjas Flour Limited

Golden Manufacturer Limited

0.57%

2.22%

0.12%

1.71%

0.16%

0.54%

2.30%
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INVESTMENT COMPANIES
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In compliance with the Reserve Bank of Fiji’s (RBF) Corporate Governance Code for the Capital Markets, FHL Fund Management 
Limited (FHL FML), the Fund Manager for Fijian Holdings Unit Trust (FHUT) acknowledges and supports this requirement and reports 
on the Company’s Corporate Governance Code.

FHL FML Corporate Governance Code is aligned to the Fijian Holdings Limited (FHL) Code as a fully owned subsidiary.

Principle FHL FML Comments

Establish Clear 
Responsibilities for Board 
Oversight         
	

The FHUT Scheme Deed stipulates the powers and duties of the Manager and the Trustees. The FHL FML Articles of 
Association sets out the powers and duties of the Board to manage the company effectively and efficiently. FHL FML 
continuously develops policy and guidelines to strengthen its role.

Constitute an Effective 
Board

The FHL FML Articles of Association covers the required constitution of the Board. Directors are selected for their 
experience and competencies and are evaluated on their suitability for the Board by the FHL Board of Directors. 

FHL FML also has an Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee that addresses all audit, risk & compliance issues and 
complaints. This Committee meets quarterly and comprises of three independent members and a representative from 
the Board of FHL FML.

Appointment of a General 
Manager    

FHL FML structure including the appointment of the officer/s in charge is determined by the Board and Holding 
Company of FHL FML.

Board and Company 
Secretary

The Board appoints a suitable, qualified Company Secretary who is the administrative link between the Board and the 
Management and is responsible for ensuring compliance with regulatory requirements.

Timely and Balanced 
reporting

FHUT complies with its disclosure obligations under the Fiji Companies Act 2015. FHL FML Board meetings are held 
once every quarter at the minimum, to update Directors on the Fund’s performance and to review and provide approvals 
and confirmations of key aspects of the operations of the Fund.

Promote Ethical and 
Responsible Decision-
making                

FHL FML has adopted the FHL Group approved Code of Conduct that sets out the principles of ethical behaviour by 
all group personnel. This ethical framework commits its directors, employees, contractors and consultants to not only 
comply with the law, but to conduct business in accordance with the highest ethical standards. FHL FML also ensures it 
complies with the RBF’s Capital Markets policies and the Companies Act 2015 whereby Directors and Employees of the 
Fund Manager cannot purchase units created by the Fund.

Register of Interests  
The Board of Directors of Fund Manager, Trustees and Officers of the Fund Manager must disclose any conflict of interest 
that may arise in the course of the business.

Respect the rights of 
shareholders FHUT complies with all disclosure requirements under the Scheme Deed, Companies Act 2015, Articles of Association 

and Capital Markets Prudential Supervision Policy Statements. FHL FML with the concurrence of the Trustees ensures 
that all material changes made during the course of operations are communicated to unit holders in a press release and 
individually through mail. FHL FML also conducts training sessions for the unit holders upon request.

Accountability and Audit
Financial statements of FHUT are audited annually by independent auditors who provide their report to the unit holders. 
Regular internal audits are conducted by our Group Auditors on operational matters whilst the RBF conducts routine 
on-site examination of the Fund.

Recognize and manage 
risk            Based on the Funds operations FHL FML has developed a detailed Enterprise Risk Management Framework to manage 

operational and data risks with appropriate controls and procedures. FHL FML continues to review the Funds operations 
and develop appropriate mitigation strategies.

Evaluation of Board 
Performances

FHL FML undertakes to conduct an evaluation of Board performance on an annual basis to ensure that individual 
directors and the Board as a whole work efficiently and effectively in achieving their functions.

Securities Trading Policy Based on the operations, the Company has established a policy that imposes certain restrictions on FHL FML Directors, 
senior management and employees directly owning an investment account with FHUT.

Insolvency – Directors 
Duties If the Company is insolvent or there is a real risk of insolvency, Directors duties expand to include creditors (including 

employees with outstanding entitlements) such as:
The duty to exercise powers and duty of care and diligence that a reasonable person   would have which includes 
taking steps to ensure the financial position of the Company  is properly informed and ensuring the Company 
doesn’t trade if it is insolvent.
The duty to exercise powers and duties in good faith in the best interests of the Company     and for a proper purpose.
The duty not to improperly use position to gain a personal advantage or to cause
detriment to the Company.

•

•

•
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MANAGEMENT STAFF

Elenoa Kaloumaira

Rukshana Nisha

Ashika Mani

Mohit Chand

Epeli Vakatawa Mereti Cokanasiga

Mohammed Ejaaz

General Manager

Risk & Compliance Officer

Manager Finance

Investment Officer

Deputy General Manager 
(Sales & Marketing)

Manager Operations

Business Analyst
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FHUT TEAM

Suva Team

Lautoka Team

Labasa Team
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FHL TRUSTEES LIMITED BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FHL FUND MANAGEMENT LIMITED BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Deve Toganivalu

Mr. Alphonsus Pio

Mr. Naushad Ali Ms. Anaisi Mataitoga

Trustee

Chairman

Mr. Pritesh Prasad
DirectorDirector Director

Mr. Inia Naiyaga

Mr. Vula Vakacegu

Chairman

Trustee
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ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT AT FHUT

The risks facing the world today are becoming increasingly 
complex and urgent, signaling a paradigm shift characterized 
by heightened instability, declining trust, and growing insecurity.  
This is unfolding against a backdrop of global governance 
frameworks that appear ill-equipped to address both known and 
emerging threats—or to mitigate the fragility these risks create.

While economic risks have declined in priority compared to last 
year—with inflation and fears of an economic downturn no longer 
dominating the agendas of decision-makers—Fijian Holdings 
Unit Trust (FHUT) has continued to maintain a strong strategic 
risk control environment. This has supported consistent investor 
returns and sustained growth, even amid global uncertainty.

Operational risk at FHUT is effectively managed through 
robust internal controls, regular compliance reviews, and 
the implementation of well-defined processes across the 
organization.  During the year, FHUT completed a major system 
upgrade by implementing a new Management Information 
System (MIS), aimed at better aligning operations with unitholder 
needs and improving overall efficiency.

Underlying these efforts is FHUT’s strong risk culture, which 
integrates governance, risk management, compliance, and 
high-performing systems and controls.  This cohesive approach 
continues to strengthen the organization and position it for long-
term stability and resilience.
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FUND MANAGER’S AND TRUSTEE’S REPORT

Dear Valued Unit Holders,

The Board of FHL Trustees Limited (FTL) and FHL Fund 
Management Limited (FHL FML) are pleased to present the 
Annual Report for the financial year ended 30 June 2025 to Fijian 
Holdings Unit Trust (“FHUT” or “Fund”) unitholders.  

For the 2025 financial year (FY25), the Fund delivered a total 
return of 10.13%, following a strong return of 14.46% in the previous 
year (FY24). The FY25 return comprised a 2.69% dividend 
return (FY24: 3.24%) and a 7.44% growth return (FY24: 11.22%).  
While the overall growth rate moderated compared to FY24, 
the Fund’s performance remained robust, reflecting resilient 
earnings growth across our core holdings and effective portfolio 
management amid a more challenging investment environment.  
The Fund’s diversified strategy ensured stability and consistent 
value creation for unitholders.

The Fund’s investment portfolio increased from $181.19 million in 
FY24 to $237.30 million in FY25, representing a 30.9% growth in 
assets under management (AUM). This substantial growth was 
driven by a combination of strong investment performance and 
significant net inflows from both new and existing unitholders.  
Furthermore, FHUT recorded significant growth in its unitholder 
base, with the number of unitholders increasing from 33,420 in 
FY24 to 38,361 in FY25. This represents a 14.8% rise in account 
holders, underscoring the continued confidence of investors 
in the Fund’s strategy, long-term track record, and consistent 
performance.

We maintain a cautiously optimistic outlook for the future and 
remain centered on our strategies: 

	• Achieving competitive long-term returns via active portfolio 
management.

	• Improving resilience through diversification across various 
asset classes and geographical regions.

	• Adopting a systematic strategy for risk management and 
capital preservation.

The Fund’s performance in 2025 underscores its function as 
a medium to long-term wealth creation instrument for our 
unitholders. 

The Board of Directors of FTL and FHL FML with its Committee 
Members would like to express gratitude to our unitholders for 
their ongoing trust and confidence, and we reaffirm our dedication 
to providing sustainable returns in the future.

Finally, we extend our sincere appreciation to the dedicated 
employees of FHL FML for their unwavering commitment, 
professionalism, and attention to detail. Their efforts have been 
instrumental in positioning the Fund where it stands today and in 
delivering outcomes that continue to inspire the confidence and 
trust of FHUT unitholder.

FHL FUND MANAGEMENT LIMITED 

			 
CHAIRMAN

FHL TRUSTEES LIMITED

						    
CHAIRMAN
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GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

For the financial year ending 30th June 2025, Fijian Holding Unit 
Trust (“FHUT” or “Trust” or “Fund”) navigated a dynamic market 
environment with resilience, maintaining its commitment to 
delivering sustainable returns to unitholders.

Unitholder Reach
Throughout the year, FHUT continued its regular monthly sales 
and marketing visits across the Central, Western, Eastern, and 
Northern divisions of Fiji, providing existing unitholders with 
opportunities to increase their investments and encouraging the 
general public to open new accounts with the Trust.

Apart from the Fiji market, this year FHUT was part of the Fiji 
Trade Commission – Northern America investment awareness to 
the Fijian diaspora in the United States of America.  Furthermore, 
the Fiji High Commission in the United Kingdom conducted a 
similar awareness session with Fijian diaspora in England, Wales 
and Scotland.

As a result, the total unit sales recorded for the year were a record 
$64 million, whilst unit redemption stood at $14 million, equating 
to a net sale of $50 million.

Financial Performance
The year began with FHUT’s $3 million private placement 
investment in SUN Insurance Company Limited (SUN) converting 
to listed local equity following SUN’s successful initial public 
offering and listing on the South Pacific Stock Exchange (SPX) in 
August 2025. Additionally, the Trust increased its shareholding 
in RB Patel Group Limited (RBG) by acquiring an additional 
$13 million worth of shares during the year. Furthermore, FHUT 
expanded its portfolio of unlisted equity securities with a $1 
million investment in Fiji Gas Limited (FGL).

In terms of offshore listed securities, FHUT established a new 
Managed Discretionary Account with Morgans Financial Limited, 
allocating $3 million to diversify its portfolio. The investment 
has expanded beyond Australian listed equities to include 
global listed equities, exchange-traded funds (ETFs), real estate 
investment trusts (REITs), Australian fixed income, and other 
fixed income securities. As a result, in addition to the Fiji market, 
FHUT now invests across the Australian, Papua New Guinean, 
and American markets.

The year ended with the FHUT investment portfolio growing 
by 31% from $181 million in 2024 to $237 million, providing a 
dividend yield of 2.69% and capital growth of 7.44%, generating a 
total return of 10.13% to unitholders.

Digitalisation
In June 2025, Software Factory Pte Limited completed the 
development of the Trust’s new management information 
system, the FHUT UnitWorkz System. Following this is the 
implementation phase, aiming to enhance operational efficiency 
and deliver improved service to unitholders. 

Central Division New Office Location
During the year, FHL Fund Management Limited (FHL FML) 
relocated its Central branch and headquarters to a new office at 
Level 6, Vanua House, 77 Victoria Parade, Suva. This move allows 
for the redevelopment of the Ground Floor space to improve 
digital services.

Overall, the performance outcomes reflect the Trust’s strategic 
positioning and the disciplined execution of its investment 
objectives.  Looking ahead, the Management team remains 
committed to further diversifying the FHUT investment portfolio, 
particularly in sectors such as tourism, infrastructure and energy, 
to deliver sustainable returns for unitholders.

In conclusion, I would like to extend my sincere gratitude to the 
Management and staff of FHL Fund Management Limited (FHL 
FML) for their dedication and hard work throughout the year, 
which has contributed to FHUT’s strong performance. I also wish 
to thank the Boards of FHL FML and Fijian Trustees Limited (FTL) 
for their continued guidance and support. Finally, I express my 
appreciation to our unitholders, shareholders, and stakeholders 
for their ongoing trust and confidence in the FHUT.

Vinaka Vakalevu,

Elenoa Kaloumaira
General Manager
FHL Fund Management Limited
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INVESTMENT LITERACY REPORT

The core objectives of Fijian Holdings Unit Trust (FHUT or Trust) 
Outreach Program are to empower individuals residing locally and 
internationally with the knowledge and skills to make effective 
financial decisions for their personal well-being and to enable 
their full participation in economic life that will benefit individual 
and society. Over the years, most of our visitation whether land 
and resource owners presentation or workplace presentation 
were all done locally. In addition to this, the FHUT hosted two 
Information Session for the 2025 financial year: North and 
West Information Session.  Furthermore, FHUT have broaden 
its awareness arm by visiting Fijians living in Northern America 
(USA) and in the United Kingdom (UK) during the financial year.

Employment Deduction Scheme.

FHUT actively presents the Employment Deduction Scheme 
(EDS) to large and medium-sized employers, Government 
Departments, and statutory bodies during workplace financial 
wellness sessions.  EDS serves as a practical, hands-off tool that 
converts short-term income into long-term investment capital, 
directly supporting an investor’s goals whether it be retirement, 
education funding, or other major life expenses as per the 
employee investment objectives.

Apart from the Government Ministries that have signed an 
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with FHUT, the Fund 
have secured a total of 41 employers since the inception of our 
EDS product in 2013.

Organisation Category Number of Employer

Town and City Councils 2

Company (Large and Medium) 13

FHL Subsidiaries 9

Statutory Body 15

Non-Government Organisation 2

Domestic Outreach: The Village Visitation Program

FHUT is committed to financial inclusion at the grassroot level, driven by its robust Village Visitation Program. This initiative ensures 
that investment literacy education reach individuals, Mataqali and Tokatoka (land-owning units) and village cooperatives across Fiji, 
particularly those in remote and rural areas.

The program employs scheduled visits and major district-wide drives to maximize coverage and engagement. FHUT consistent 
monthly visits:

Division District / Province FHUT Office Assigned for the Visit

Central District of Naboubuco, Naitasiri FHUT Suva

Namosi Inland

Ra Inland

Western District of Rukuruku, Ba FHUT Lautoka

District of Nasigatoka, Nadroga

Northern District of Natewa, Cakaudrove FHUT Labasa

District of Tunuloa, Cakaudrove

District of Cakaudroveiwai, Cakaudrove
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Further to this, a Fiji-UK Diaspora Awareness Program was held in May 2025 providing direct services and promoting investment to 
Fijians living abroad. The roadshow’s outcome was reported to Parliament in August 2025. It reached over 1,500 Fijians across 13 
locations, including London, Edinburgh, and Colchester, and helped process thousands of requests on investment opportunities. 

FHUT extends its heartfelt appreciation to both local and international communities for their generous support and warm hospitality 
during roadshows.

Vinaka Vakalevu.

FHUT Information Session

This is a new initiatives inviting investors to come and hear first hand information about the Trust’s financial performance. Details is 
as stipulated below:

Landmark Overseas Expansion

A major milestone for FHUT was its first-ever inclusion in an Overseas Roadshow, which marked a significant strategic shift toward 
engaging the vast and financially influential Fijian diaspora. In September 2024, FHUT along with other stakeholders received a formal 
invitation from the Fiji Trade Commission North America to conduct financial literacy to Fijians working and studying in the US. The 
location covered is tabulated herein:

Information Session Location North West

Number of Participants 34 21

Information Session Location Date West Venue

Investment presentation both on 
shares and units. Opening of new 
accounts, top ups, account status 
updates etc.

06/10/2024 112 Seattle, Washington

08/10/2024 67 San Francisco, California

09/10/2024 207 Sacramento, California

11/10/2024 452 Santa Rosa, California
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
In accordance with resolution of the Directors of the FHL Fund Management Limited and FHL Trustees 
Limited, the directors herewith submit the statement of financial position of the Fijian Holdings Unit 
Trust ("the Trust") as at 30 June 2025, the related statement of comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date and 
report as follows: 
 
Trustee and Manager 
 
Manager 
 
The Manager of the Trust at the date of this report is FHL Fund Management Limited. The Directors 
of the management company at the date of this report are: 
 
   Mr. Alphonsus Pio Nataniela (Chairman)           
   Ms. Anaisi Mataitoga  
   Mr. Naushad Ali 
   Mr. Pretesh Prasad  
    
 
Trustee 
 
The Trustee of the Trust at the date of this report is FHL Trustee Limited. The Directors of the Trustee 
company at the date of this report are:  
  

Mr. Inia Naiyaga (Chairman)  
Mr. Navin Raj 
Mr. Deve Toganivalu   
    
 

Date of Formation 
 
The Trust was established on 27 April 2001 and has a life of 60 years from its inception. 
 
Principal Activity 
 
The Trust is an investment vehicle that allows investors' monies to be pooled with other unit holders' 
monies that in return are issued with units and become unit holders in the Trust. The pooled funds 
are then invested by the Manager across a range of investments in accordance with the investment 
guidelines contained in the Investment Policy statement. 
 
Results 
 
The results for the year are as follows: 
 
  2025 2024 
               $              $ 
Profit for the year  5,265,200 4,909,784 
    
Gain on disposal of listed equities          699,090      1,971,922 
    
Income available for distribution  5,964,290 6,881,706 
 
Dividends 
 
The Trust declared and paid a final dividend for 2024 of $2,668,507 (2023: $1,699,833) and an interim 
dividend for 2025 of $3,250,320 during the year (2024: $3,425,866). 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT [CONT’D] 
 
Assets 
 
Prior to the completion of the financial statements of the Trust, the directors of the Trustee and the 
Manager took reasonable steps to ascertain whether any assets were unlikely to be realised in the 
ordinary course of business compared to their values as shown in the accounting records of the Trust. 
Where necessary these assets have been written down or adequate allowance has been made to bring 
the values of such assets to an amount that they might be expected to realise. As at the date of this 
report, the directors of the Trustee and the Manager are not aware of any circumstances which would 
render the values attributed to assets in the Trust's financial statements misleading. 
 
Unusual Transactions 
 
In the opinion of the directors of the Trustee and the Manager, the results of the operations of the 
Trust during the financial year were not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of 
a material unusual nature, nor has there arisen between the end of the financial year and the date 
of this report any item, transaction or event of a material unusual nature likely, in the opinion of 
the directors of the Trustee and Manager, to affect substantially the results of the operations of the 
Trust in the current financial year. 
 
Fair Value Reserves 
 
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets held 
at fair value through other comprehensive income until the investments are derecognised, disposed 
or impaired. 
 
Basis of Accounting – Going Concern 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.  
 
The directors of the Trustee and the Manager believe that the Trust has plans and strategies to 
generate adequate income available for distribution and cash flows from its operations, the Trust 
will be able to meet its obligations as and when they fall due, and the Trust will be able to continue 
in operation for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements. Therefore, 
the directors believe that the classification and carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as stated in 
these financial statements are appropriate. Subsequent to balance date, the management company 
has implemented new software to deliver more efficient and reliable services to the unit holders and 
working towards new fund to increase revenue stream and capitalise on the market opportunities.  
 
The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and 
classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might 
become necessary should the Trust be unable to continue as a going concern. 
 
Related Party Transactions 
 
In the opinion of the directors of the Trustee and the Manager all related party transactions have 
been adequately recorded in the books of the Trust and reflected in the financial statements. 
 
Events Subsequent to Balance Date 
 
In July 2025, the directors declared the final dividend of $3,527,669 for the year ended 30 June 2025.  
 
Apart from this, there has been no transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in 
the opinion of the directors, to affect significantly the operations of the Trust, the results of those 
operations or state of affairs of the Trust in subsequent financial year. 
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION   
  
As auditor for the audit of Fijian Holdings Unit Trust for the financial year ended 30 June 2025, I declare 
to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:  
  
(a)    no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements in relation to the audit; and   
  
(b)    no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.  
  

  
  
  

Wathsala Suraweera  
Partner  
Suva, Fiji  
  

  
  
  

BDO  
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS  
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To the Unitholders of Fijian Holdings Unit Trust 
  

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of 
Fijian Holdings Unit Trust (“the Trust”), which 
comprise: 
 
▪ the statement of financial position as at 30 

June 2025; 
 

▪ the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and 
statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended; and 

 

▪ notes to the financial statements, including 
a summary of material accounting policies. 

 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements 
give a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the Trust as at 30 June 2025, and of its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).  
 

 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance 
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountant’s Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in Fiji and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 
Other Information  

 
The management and directors of the Trustee Company and Management Company are responsible for 
the other information. The other information comprises of the information included in the directors’ 
report but does not include the financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.  If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report 
in this regard. 
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To the Unitholders of Fijian Holdings Unit Trust (Cont’d)  

 
 
Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged With Governance for the Financial 
Statements 
 
The directors of the Trustee Company and Management Company (“directors”) and management are 
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
IFRS and the Companies Act, 2015, the provision of the Trust Deed,  and for such internal control as 
the directors and management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the management and directors are responsible for assessing the 
Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management and directors either intend to 
liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The management and those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust’s 
financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud and error and are considered material if, individually or in 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of the financial statements. 

 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

▪ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

 

▪ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’s internal control. 

 

▪ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

▪ Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s and directors’ use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if 
such disclosures, are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

▪ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’s internal control. 

 

▪ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

▪ Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s and directors’ use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if 
such disclosures, are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

▪ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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To the Unitholders of Fijian Holdings Unit Trust (Cont’d)  

 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d) 
 
We communicate with management and those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide the management and those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 
In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of 
the Companies Act, 2015 in all material respects, and;  
 
a) we have been given all information, explanations and assistance necessary for the conduct of 

the  audit; and 
 
b) the Trust has kept financial records sufficient to enable the financial statements to be prepared 

and audited. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements given the information required by the provisions of the Trust 
Deed in the manner so required. 
 
 

 
 
 

BDO 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
 

 
 
 

Wathsala Suraweera 
Partner 
Suva, Fiji 
28 August 2025 
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To the Unitholders of Fijian Holdings Unit Trust 
  

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of 
Fijian Holdings Unit Trust (“the Trust”), which 
comprise: 
 
▪ the statement of financial position as at 30 

June 2025; 
 

▪ the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and 
statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended; and 

 

▪ notes to the financial statements, including 
a summary of material accounting policies. 

 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements 
give a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the Trust as at 30 June 2025, and of its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).  
 

 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance 
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountant’s Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in Fiji and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 
Other Information  

 
The management and directors of the Trustee Company and Management Company are responsible for 
the other information. The other information comprises of the information included in the directors’ 
report but does not include the financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.  If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report 
in this regard. 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
 Notes  2025 2024 
Revenue                    $                 $ 
                                                                                                             
Interest Income 

 
5 (a) 

 
 

 
2,390,361 

 
1,861,256 

Dividend income 5 (b)  4,672,769 4,765,599 
Net equalization   490,246 105,933 
    

7,553,376 
 

6,732,788 
     
Expenses     
Bank charges   9,639 8,934 
Management fees   2,047,169 1,620,173 
Professional fees 5 (c)  39,724 37,585 
Trustee's fees   50,000 50,000 
Other expenses   141,644 106,312 
     
   2,288,176 1,823,004 
     
Profit for the year   5,265,200 4,909,784 
     
Other comprehensive income:     
     
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:     
     
Fair value gain on listed and unlisted equities   6,605,564 8,518,970 
     
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit 
or loss: 

    

     
Fair value loss on government bonds   (189,092) (161,569) 
     
Total other comprehensive income   6,416,472 8,357,401 
     
Total comprehensive income for the year   11,681,672 13,267,185 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The above statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
notes. 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
 Notes  2025 2024 
 
Unit holders' equity 

                   $                   $ 

At 1 July   134,224,069 117,994,164 
50,967,421 units created during the year (2024: 
25,061,890 units)   

   
64,294,370 

 
27,939,025 

11,099,797 units redeemed during the year (2024: 
10,608,957 units)   

  
(13,945,211) (11,709,120) 

At 30 June 
 

11 
  

184,573,228 
 

134,224,069 
     
Net income available for distribution     
At 1 July   3,564,414 1,808,406 
Profit for the year   5,265,200 4,909,784 
Transfer of cumulative fair value gain upon sale   
  of listed and unlisted equities measured at Fair Value 
through Other Comprehensive Income from fair value 
reserves 

   
 

699,090 

 
 

1,971,922 

Dividend declared and paid during the year   (5,918,827) (5,125,698) 

At 30 June 
 
9 

  
3,609,877 

 
3,564,414 

     
Fair value reserves     
At 1 July   43,406,510 37,021,031 
Fair value gain on financial assets   6,416,472 8,357,401 
Transfer of cumulative fair value loss / (gain) upon sale  
 on listed and unlisted equities measured at Fair Value 
through Other Comprehensive Income to net income 
available for distribution   

   
 
 

(699,090) 

 
 
 

(1,971,922) 

At 30 June 
 
6 

  
49,123,892 

 
43,406,510 

     
Total unit holders' equity   237,306,997 181,194,993 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
        
 Note  2025 2024 
                  $                 $ 
Cash flows from operating activities 
 

    

Cash received in the course of operations      
Interest   2,289,897 2,042,443 
Dividend   6,390,603 4,627,379 
Cash payments in the course of operations      (1,635,500)    (1,136,075) 
Payment for purchase of shares and bonds, net 
Payment for purchase of term deposits 

  (15,176,988) 
(24,000,000) 

(17,068,335) 
(4,000,000) 

Withdrawal of term deposits   11,689,367 - 
Proceeds from repayment of loans            -                  543,983         
     

Net cash flows used in operating activities    
(20,442,621) 

 
(14,990,605) 

     
Cash flows from financing activities 
 

    

Proceeds from issue of units    64,356,119  27,891,486 
Payments for repurchase of units   (13,945,211) (11,709,120) 
Distribution paid to unit holders   (5,918,827) (5,125,700) 
     
Net cash flows provided by financing   
activities 

   
44,492,081 

 
11,056,666 

     
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents   24,049,460 (3,933,939) 
     
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the  
year 

   
22,421,885 

 
26,355,824 

     

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 
 

13  46,471,345 22,421,885 
  
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of this statement of cash flows. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 1. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Fijian Holding Unit Trust ("the Trust") is a unit trust incorporated and domiciled in Fiji. The address of 
its registered office and principal place of business are disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements. 
 
Principal activity 
 
The unit trust is an investment vehicle that allows investors' monies to be pooled with other unit 
holders' monies that in return are issued with units and become unit holders in the unit trust. The 
pooled funds are then invested by the Manager across a range of investments in accordance with the 
investment guidelines contained in the Investment Policy Statement. 
 
Material accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of these financial statements 
are noted below. The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors of the Trustee 
and the Manager on 28 August 2025. 
 
 
NOTE 2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
(a) Statement of compliance 
 
The financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with the Trust Deed, Companies Act 2015 
and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). 
 
(b) Basis of preparation 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of fair value measurement of assets and 
measurement at amortized cost for liabilities except where otherwise stated. 
 
In the application of IFRS, management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The 
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstance, the results of which form the basis of making 
the judgments. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that 
period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 
periods.  Judgments made by management in the application of IFRS that have significant effects on 
the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next year 
are disclosed, where applicable, in the relevant notes to the financial statements. 
 
The areas involving higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and 
estimates are critical to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4. 
 
Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial 
information satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of 
the underlying transactions or other events is reported. 
 
(c) Comparatives 
 
Where necessary, amounts relating to prior years have been reclassified to facilitate comparison and 
achieve consistency in disclosure with current year amounts. 
 
(d) Functional and presentation currency 
 
The Trust operates in Fiji and hence the financial statements are presented in Fiji dollars, which is the 
Trust's functional and presentation currency.        
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D) 
 
(e)      Changes in Accounting Policies  
 
New standards, interpretations and amendments effective during the year  
 
The following amendments are effective for the period beginning on or after 1 January 2024: 
  
• Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial 

Instruments: Disclosures); and 
  
• Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 

(Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements). 
 

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments not yet Effective 
 
There are a number of standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations which have been 
issued by the IASB that are effective in future accounting periods that the Trust has decided not to 
adopt early.  
 
The following amendments are effective for the period beginning on or after 1 January 2025:  
 
• Lack of Exchangeability (Amendment to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates). 
 
The following amendments are effective for the period beginning on or after 1 January 2026:  
 
• Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments (Amendments to IFRS 

9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 7).  
 

The following standards are effective in Fiji for the period beginning on or after 1 January 2026: 
  
• IFRS S1 - General requirements for disclosure of sustainability-related financial information. This 

standard includes the core framework for the disclosure of material information about 
sustainability-related risks and opportunities across a Trust’s value chain. 

  
• IFRS S2 - Climate-related disclosures. This standard sets out requirements for entities to disclose 

information about climate-related risks and opportunities. 
 
The following standards are effective for the period beginning 1 January 2027: 
 
• IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements. 
 
IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements, which was issued by the IASB in April 2024 
supersedes IAS 1 and will result in major consequential amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards 
including IAS 8 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements (renamed from Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors). 
  
Even though IFRS 18 will not have any effect on the recognition and measurement of items in the 
financial statements, it is expected to have a significant effect on the presentation and disclosure of 
certain items. These changes include categorisation and sub-totals in the statement of profit or loss, 
aggregation/disaggregation and labelling of information, and disclosure of management-defined 
performance measures. 
 
The Trust is currently assessing the effect of these new accounting standards and will adopt as 
applicable. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
A summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the Trust is set out in this note. The policies 
adopted are in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"), and unless stated 
otherwise are consistent with those applied in the prior period. 
 
(a) Financial Assets 
 
(i) Recognition and initial measurement 
 
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other 
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Trust becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial 
liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing 
component is initially measured at the transaction price. 
 
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement 
 
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; FVOCI - debt 
investment; FVOCI - equity investment; or FVTPL. 
 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Trust changes its 
business model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified 
on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model. 
 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL: 
 
• it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash 

flows; and 
 
• its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 

and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL: 
 
• it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 

flows and selling financial assets; and 
 

• its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 

• On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Trust may irrevocably 
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI. This election is made on 
an investment by investment basis. 
 

• All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are 
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Trust 
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured 
at amortised cost or at FVOCI at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting 
mismatch that would otherwise arise. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 
(a)     Financial Assets (Cont’d) 
 
(ii)       Classification and subsequent measurement (Cont’d) 
 
Financial assets: Business model assessment 
 
The Trust makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held 
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is 
provided to management. The information considered includes: 
 
• the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. 

These include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, 
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the 
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale 
of the assets; 

 

• how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Trust's management; 
 

• the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within 
that business model) and how those risks are managed; 

 

• how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair 
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and 

 

• the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such 
sales and expectations about future sales activity. 

 
Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are 
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Trust's continuing recognition of the assets. 
 
Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair 
value basis are measured at FVTPL. 
 
Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal 
and interest  
 
For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on 
initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit 
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other 
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. 
 
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Trust 
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset 
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such 
that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Trust considers: 
 
• contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows; 

 

• terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable rate features; 
 

• prepayment and extension features; and 
 

• terms that limit the Trust's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features). 
 
A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the 
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of 
the contract. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 
(a)     Financial Assets (Cont’d) 
 
(ii)       Classification and subsequent measurement (Cont’d) 
 
Financial assets: Business model assessment 
 
The Trust makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held 
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is 
provided to management. The information considered includes: 
 
• the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. 

These include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, 
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the 
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale 
of the assets; 

 

• how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Trust's management; 
 

• the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within 
that business model) and how those risks are managed; 

 

• how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair 
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and 

 

• the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such 
sales and expectations about future sales activity. 

 
Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are 
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Trust's continuing recognition of the assets. 
 
Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair 
value basis are measured at FVTPL. 
 
Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal 
and interest  
 
For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on 
initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit 
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other 
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. 
 
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Trust 
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset 
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such 
that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Trust considers: 
 
• contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows; 

 

• terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable rate features; 
 

• prepayment and extension features; and 
 

• terms that limit the Trust's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features). 
 
A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the 
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of 
the contract. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 
(a)     Financial Assets (Cont’d) 
 
(ii)      Classification and subsequent measurement (Cont’d) 
 
Financial assets: Reclassifications 
 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after 
the Trust changes its business model for managing financial assets. 
 
Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 
 
Financial assets at FVTPL 
 
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or 
dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss. 
 
Financial assets at amortised cost 
 
These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The 
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses 
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit 
or loss. 
 
Debt investments at FVOCI 
 
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective 
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. 
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in 
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss. 
 
Equity investments at FVOCI 
 
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit or 
loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net 
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss. 
 
(iii) Derecognition 
 
Financial assets 
 
The Trust derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which 
the Trust neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it 
does not retain control of the financial asset. 
 
The Trust enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of financial 
position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In 
these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised. 
 
Financial liabilities 
 
The Trust derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, 
or expire. The Trust also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash 
flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based 
on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. On derecognition of a financial liability, the 
difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 
(a)     Financial Assets (Cont’d) 
 
(iv) Modifications of financial assets 
 
If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially different then 
the modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Trust 
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognises the amount arising from 
adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. If such a modification 
is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented 
together with impairment losses. 
 
(v) Offsetting 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of 
financial position when, and only when, the Trust currently has a legally enforceable right to set off 
the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. 
 
(b) Impairment of Financial Instruments 
 
Financial instruments  
 
The Trust recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets measured at amortised cost. No 
impairment loss is recognised on equity investment. 
 
The Trust measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, which 
are measured as 12 month ECL: 
 
• bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the 

financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition. 
 
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Trust considers reasonable and supportable information that 
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative 
information and analysis, based on the Trust's historical experience and informed credit assessment 
and including forward-looking information. 
 
The Trust assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 
30 days past due. 
 
The Trust considers a financial asset to be in default when: 
 
• Trust to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or 
 

• the financial asset is more than 90 days past due. 
 
The Trust considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to 
the generally understood definition of 'investment grade'. 
 
Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
financial instrument. 
 
12 month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 
12 months). 
 
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which 
the Trust is exposed to credit risk. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 
(a)     Financial Assets (Cont’d) 
 
(iv) Modifications of financial assets 
 
If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially different then 
the modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Trust 
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognises the amount arising from 
adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. If such a modification 
is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented 
together with impairment losses. 
 
(v) Offsetting 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of 
financial position when, and only when, the Trust currently has a legally enforceable right to set off 
the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. 
 
(b) Impairment of Financial Instruments 
 
Financial instruments  
 
The Trust recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets measured at amortised cost. No 
impairment loss is recognised on equity investment. 
 
The Trust measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, which 
are measured as 12 month ECL: 
 
• bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the 

financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition. 
 
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Trust considers reasonable and supportable information that 
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative 
information and analysis, based on the Trust's historical experience and informed credit assessment 
and including forward-looking information. 
 
The Trust assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 
30 days past due. 
 
The Trust considers a financial asset to be in default when: 
 
• Trust to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or 
 

• the financial asset is more than 90 days past due. 
 
The Trust considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to 
the generally understood definition of 'investment grade'. 
 
Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
financial instrument. 
 
12 month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 
12 months). 
 
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which 
the Trust is exposed to credit risk. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 
(a)     Financial Assets (Cont’d) 
 
(iv) Modifications of financial assets 
 
If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially different then 
the modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Trust 
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognises the amount arising from 
adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. If such a modification 
is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented 
together with impairment losses. 
 
(v) Offsetting 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of 
financial position when, and only when, the Trust currently has a legally enforceable right to set off 
the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. 
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Financial instruments  
 
The Trust recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets measured at amortised cost. No 
impairment loss is recognised on equity investment. 
 
The Trust measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, which 
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• bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the 
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When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Trust considers reasonable and supportable information that 
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative 
information and analysis, based on the Trust's historical experience and informed credit assessment 
and including forward-looking information. 
 
The Trust assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 
30 days past due. 
 
The Trust considers a financial asset to be in default when: 
 
• Trust to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or 
 

• the financial asset is more than 90 days past due. 
 
The Trust considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to 
the generally understood definition of 'investment grade'. 
 
Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
financial instrument. 
 
12 month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 
12 months). 
 
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which 
the Trust is exposed to credit risk. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 
(a)     Financial Assets (Cont’d) 
 
(iv) Modifications of financial assets 
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adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. If such a modification 
is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented 
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(v) Offsetting 
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financial position when, and only when, the Trust currently has a legally enforceable right to set off 
the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. 
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30 days past due. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 

(b)     Impairment of Financial Instruments (Cont’d) 
 
Measurement of ECLs 
 
ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows: 
 

• financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash 
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the 
contract and the cash flows that the Trust expects to receive); and 

 

• financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. 

 

• ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset. 
 
Credit-impaired financial assets 
 

At each reporting date, the Trust assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit 
impaired. A financial asset is 'credit impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 
 

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observable data: 
 

• significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 
 

• a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due; 
 

• the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Trust on terms that the Trust would not consider 
otherwise; 

 

• it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or 
 

• the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties. 
 

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position 
 

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying 
amount of the assets. 
 

Write-off 
 
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent 
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Trust determines 
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to 
repay the amounts subject to the write‑off. However, financial assets that are written off could still 
be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Trust’s procedures for recovery of 
amounts due. 
 

(c) Revenue Recognition 
 

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for all interest bearing financial assets using the effective 
interest method.  
 
Dividend income from listed or quoted securities is recognised when the right to receive payment is 
established (normally the ex-dividend date). Dividends from unlisted and private equities are 
recognised when the Trust has received formal notification that a dividend has been declared and the 
right to receive the dividend is established. Other income is brought to account on an accrual basis. 
 

(d) Distributions 
 

In accordance with the Trust Deed, the Trust may distribute, by cash or reinvestment, all distributable 
income to unit holders. Distributable income is the Manager’s estimate, with the Trustee’s approval, 
of the amount the Trust may distribute, not exceeding the net income of the Trust for an accrual 
period. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 

(b)     Impairment of Financial Instruments (Cont’d) 
 
Measurement of ECLs 
 
ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows: 
 

• financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash 
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the 
contract and the cash flows that the Trust expects to receive); and 

 

• financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. 

 

• ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset. 
 
Credit-impaired financial assets 
 

At each reporting date, the Trust assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit 
impaired. A financial asset is 'credit impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 
 

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observable data: 
 

• significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 
 

• a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due; 
 

• the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Trust on terms that the Trust would not consider 
otherwise; 

 

• it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or 
 

• the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties. 
 

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position 
 

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying 
amount of the assets. 
 

Write-off 
 
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent 
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Trust determines 
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to 
repay the amounts subject to the write‑off. However, financial assets that are written off could still 
be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Trust’s procedures for recovery of 
amounts due. 
 

(c) Revenue Recognition 
 

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for all interest bearing financial assets using the effective 
interest method.  
 
Dividend income from listed or quoted securities is recognised when the right to receive payment is 
established (normally the ex-dividend date). Dividends from unlisted and private equities are 
recognised when the Trust has received formal notification that a dividend has been declared and the 
right to receive the dividend is established. Other income is brought to account on an accrual basis. 
 

(d) Distributions 
 

In accordance with the Trust Deed, the Trust may distribute, by cash or reinvestment, all distributable 
income to unit holders. Distributable income is the Manager’s estimate, with the Trustee’s approval, 
of the amount the Trust may distribute, not exceeding the net income of the Trust for an accrual 
period. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 
(e) Management Fees 
 
Management fees are standard fees stated under the terms of the Trust Deed and based on 1% on the 
value of total Trust Fund. This is payable after creation end and is calculated on the net asset value of 
the unit trust at the beginning of the next creation. 
 
(f) Trustee Fees 
 
Trustee fees payable to FHL Trustees Limited has been fixed at $50,000 per annum.  
 
(g) Payables 
 
These amounts represent liabilities for services provided to the Trust prior to the end of the financial 
year end which are unpaid. 
 
(h) Entry Fees 
 
The Manager is entitled under the Trust Deed to an entry fee of up to 3.5%. The entry fees only applies 
to units that are purchased by unit holders. 
 
(i) Taxes 
 
Income taxes 
 
The Trust is not subject to income tax provided the distributable income is declared for distribution to 
unit holders. 
 
Value Added Tax ("VAT") 
 
The Trust is exempted from VAT. 
 
(j) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash 
in banks. 
 
(k) Provisions 
 
Provisions are recognised when the Trust has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated. 
 
Distributions are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared. 
 
(l) Fair Value Measurement 
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants and the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, 
the most advantageous market to which the fund has access at that date. Consistent with established 
practice in Fiji, listed equity investments are measured at the closing share price on the South Pacific 
Stock Exchange, Australian Securities Exchange and Papua New Guinea Securities Exchange at each 
reporting date. Fiji Government Bonds are measured at the prices quoted by the Reserve Bank of Fiji 
at each reporting date as adjusted for accrued interest where this is material.  
 
When available, the Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active 
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as “active” if transactions for the asset or liabilities 
take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an on-going basis. 
The fair value of other unlisted equities is estimated with the assistance of independent valuers 
approved by the Fund Manager and Trustee as per the Trust Deed.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 

 
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 

(l) Fair Value Measurement (Cont’d) 
 

Where possible, the valuations use applicable price earnings ratios for similar listed companies, 
adjusted to reflect the specific circumstances of the issuer and may be based on following 
methodologies: 
 

1. Discount Cashflow Model (DCF) 
2. Net Tangible Asset Approach (NTA) 
3. Future Maintainable Earnings Method (FME) 
4. Capitalization of Dividends Method (CoD) 
 
If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Trust uses valuation techniques that maximize 
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen 
valuation technique seeks to incorporate all of the factors that market participants would take into 
account in pricing a transaction. The Trust recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value 
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period during which the changes have occurred. 
 
 

NOTE 4.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS  
 
In application of the Trust’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the directors are 
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on various factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on various factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods. The critical judgments and assumptions made in applying the 
accounting policies of the Trust have been disclosed under the following notes to the financial 
statements:  
 
Note 3(l) and Note 8 - Fair Value Measurement. 
 
 

NOTE 5. REVENUE AND EXPENSES  2025 2024 
                     $                $ 
    
(a) Interest income    2,390,361 1,861,256 
    

Interest income is earned from terms deposits, government bonds, corporate bonds and cash at 
bank balance. The interest rate on term deposits ranged from 2.25% to 4.5% (2024: 2% to 4.3%), the 
interest rate on government bond ranged from 3% to 13% (2024: 3% to 13%), the interest rate on 
corporate bond ranged from 3.5% to 3.75% (2024: 3.5% to 3.75%) and the interest rate on cash at 
bank balance ranged from 1% to 1.55% (2024: 0.25% to 1%) respectively.  

 

(b)       Dividend income                4,672,769 4,765,599 
Dividend income is earned from investment in shares in listed and unlisted entities and from mutual 
funds. 
 

(c) Professional fees    
    
Auditor's remuneration    

- audit fees – current year  24,041 21,735 
- other services  3,033 3,200 
Valuation fees  12,650 12,650 
    
    39,724 37,585 

FIJIAN HOLDINGS UNIT TRUST          Page 22 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 

 
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 

(l) Fair Value Measurement (Cont’d) 
 

Where possible, the valuations use applicable price earnings ratios for similar listed companies, 
adjusted to reflect the specific circumstances of the issuer and may be based on following 
methodologies: 
 

1. Discount Cashflow Model (DCF) 
2. Net Tangible Asset Approach (NTA) 
3. Future Maintainable Earnings Method (FME) 
4. Capitalization of Dividends Method (CoD) 
 
If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Trust uses valuation techniques that maximize 
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen 
valuation technique seeks to incorporate all of the factors that market participants would take into 
account in pricing a transaction. The Trust recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value 
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period during which the changes have occurred. 
 
 

NOTE 4.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS  
 
In application of the Trust’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the directors are 
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on various factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on various factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods. The critical judgments and assumptions made in applying the 
accounting policies of the Trust have been disclosed under the following notes to the financial 
statements:  
 
Note 3(l) and Note 8 - Fair Value Measurement. 
 
 

NOTE 5. REVENUE AND EXPENSES  2025 2024 
                     $                $ 
    
(a) Interest income    2,390,361 1,861,256 
    

Interest income is earned from terms deposits, government bonds, corporate bonds and cash at 
bank balance. The interest rate on term deposits ranged from 2.25% to 4.5% (2024: 2% to 4.3%), the 
interest rate on government bond ranged from 3% to 13% (2024: 3% to 13%), the interest rate on 
corporate bond ranged from 3.5% to 3.75% (2024: 3.5% to 3.75%) and the interest rate on cash at 
bank balance ranged from 1% to 1.55% (2024: 0.25% to 1%) respectively.  

 

(b)       Dividend income                4,672,769 4,765,599 
Dividend income is earned from investment in shares in listed and unlisted entities and from mutual 
funds. 
 

(c) Professional fees    
    
Auditor's remuneration    

- audit fees – current year  24,041 21,735 
- other services  3,033 3,200 
Valuation fees  12,650 12,650 
    
    39,724 37,585 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 

 
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 

(l) Fair Value Measurement (Cont’d) 
 

Where possible, the valuations use applicable price earnings ratios for similar listed companies, 
adjusted to reflect the specific circumstances of the issuer and may be based on following 
methodologies: 
 

1. Discount Cashflow Model (DCF) 
2. Net Tangible Asset Approach (NTA) 
3. Future Maintainable Earnings Method (FME) 
4. Capitalization of Dividends Method (CoD) 
 
If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Trust uses valuation techniques that maximize 
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen 
valuation technique seeks to incorporate all of the factors that market participants would take into 
account in pricing a transaction. The Trust recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value 
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period during which the changes have occurred. 
 
 

NOTE 4.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS  
 
In application of the Trust’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the directors are 
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on various factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on various factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods. The critical judgments and assumptions made in applying the 
accounting policies of the Trust have been disclosed under the following notes to the financial 
statements:  
 
Note 3(l) and Note 8 - Fair Value Measurement. 
 
 

NOTE 5. REVENUE AND EXPENSES  2025 2024 
                     $                $ 
    
(a) Interest income    2,390,361 1,861,256 
    

Interest income is earned from terms deposits, government bonds, corporate bonds and cash at 
bank balance. The interest rate on term deposits ranged from 2.25% to 4.5% (2024: 2% to 4.3%), the 
interest rate on government bond ranged from 3% to 13% (2024: 3% to 13%), the interest rate on 
corporate bond ranged from 3.5% to 3.75% (2024: 3.5% to 3.75%) and the interest rate on cash at 
bank balance ranged from 1% to 1.55% (2024: 0.25% to 1%) respectively.  

 

(b)       Dividend income                4,672,769 4,765,599 
Dividend income is earned from investment in shares in listed and unlisted entities and from mutual 
funds. 
 

(c) Professional fees    
    
Auditor's remuneration    

- audit fees – current year  24,041 21,735 
- other services  3,033 3,200 
Valuation fees  12,650 12,650 
    
    39,724 37,585 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 

 
NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 

(l) Fair Value Measurement (Cont’d) 
 

Where possible, the valuations use applicable price earnings ratios for similar listed companies, 
adjusted to reflect the specific circumstances of the issuer and may be based on following 
methodologies: 
 

1. Discount Cashflow Model (DCF) 
2. Net Tangible Asset Approach (NTA) 
3. Future Maintainable Earnings Method (FME) 
4. Capitalization of Dividends Method (CoD) 
 
If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Trust uses valuation techniques that maximize 
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen 
valuation technique seeks to incorporate all of the factors that market participants would take into 
account in pricing a transaction. The Trust recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value 
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period during which the changes have occurred. 
 
 

NOTE 4.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS  
 
In application of the Trust’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the directors are 
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on various factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on various factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods. The critical judgments and assumptions made in applying the 
accounting policies of the Trust have been disclosed under the following notes to the financial 
statements:  
 
Note 3(l) and Note 8 - Fair Value Measurement. 
 
 

NOTE 5. REVENUE AND EXPENSES  2025 2024 
                     $                $ 
    
(a) Interest income    2,390,361 1,861,256 
    

Interest income is earned from terms deposits, government bonds, corporate bonds and cash at 
bank balance. The interest rate on term deposits ranged from 2.25% to 4.5% (2024: 2% to 4.3%), the 
interest rate on government bond ranged from 3% to 13% (2024: 3% to 13%), the interest rate on 
corporate bond ranged from 3.5% to 3.75% (2024: 3.5% to 3.75%) and the interest rate on cash at 
bank balance ranged from 1% to 1.55% (2024: 0.25% to 1%) respectively.  

 

(b)       Dividend income                4,672,769 4,765,599 
Dividend income is earned from investment in shares in listed and unlisted entities and from mutual 
funds. 
 

(c) Professional fees    
    
Auditor's remuneration    

- audit fees – current year  24,041 21,735 
- other services  3,033 3,200 
Valuation fees  12,650 12,650 
    
    39,724 37,585 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 6. FAIR VALUE RESERVES   2025 2024 
               $             $ 
    

Net change in the fair value of financial assets at FVOCI  49,123,892 43,406,510 
    

This is represented by as follows:    
    
Balance as at 1 July  43,406,510  37,021,031  
Fair value gain on financial assets  6,416,472 8,357,401 
Transfer of cumulative fair value loss / (gain) upon sale of  
listed, unlisted equities and government bonds are measured at 
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income to net income 
available for distribution  

  
 
 

(699,090) 

 
 
 

(1,971,922) 
    

Balance as at 30 June  49,123,892 43,406,510 
    
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity investments 
and bonds until these financial assets are derecognised, disposed or impaired. 
    
    

NOTE 7.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST    
    

(a) Term deposits     
Short-term deposits  14,517,014 30,539,368 
Long-term deposits (i)           31,000,000 500,000 
   

45,517,014 
 

31,039,368 
(b) Other receivables    
Accrued interest income  447,693 347,229 
Accrued dividend income  356,675 1,982,549 
Receivables from FHL Stockbrokers Pte Limited (ii)                                   - 2,148,794 
Deposits  1,168,772 1,260,733 
   

1,973,140 
 

5,739,305 
Sundry debtor (iii)  34,825 96,574 
Other Debtors (iv)               7,132           1,604 

Less: allowance for impairment loss                         (11,075) (11,075) 
  

 
 

2,004,022 
 

5,826,408 
 
Total financial assets at amortised cost 

 
 

 
47,521,036 

 
36,865,776 

 
(i) Long term deposits have a term of more than 12 months and earn interest at (2.8% to 4.5%) per 

annum (2024 : 4.3%). 
 

(ii) Receivable from FHL Stockbrokers Pte Limited relates to proceed from sale of shares in a listed 
entity remitted by purchases to FHL Stockbrokers Pte Limited.This has been receipted by the 
trust in July 2024. 

 
(iii) Sundry debtor relates to balance receivable from agents, Post Fiji Pte Limited, Vodafone Fiji Pte 

Limited (M-paisa), Digicel (MyCash) and Sole Fintech Limited. 
 

(iv) Other debtor relates to balance receivable from FHL Fund Management Limited. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 8. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD AT FAIR VALUE  
 THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  2025 2024 
                  $              $ 

Listed equities     
Shares quoted on stock exchanges:    

South Pacific Stock Exchange  69,542,575 51,206,558 
Australian Securities Exchange  3,442,428 2,616,457 
PNG’s National Stock Exchange  14,859,737 12,019,691 

    

  87,844,740 65,842,706 
    

Unlisted equities    
Shares in unlisted entities  33,843,536 36,173,137 
Quoted managed fund  5,240,512 5,075,796 
    

  39,084,048 41,248,933 
Bonds    
Fiji Government Bonds  12,065,933 10,205,670 
Corporate Bonds  5,000,000 5,000,000 
    

  17,065,933 15,205,670 
    

Total financial assets held at fair value through other 
  comprehensive income 

 
 

 
143,994,721 

 
122,297,309 

 

Quoted shares 
 

Consistent with established practice in Fiji, listed equity investments are measured at the closing share 
price on the South Pacific Stock Exchange, Australian Securities Exchange and PNG’s National Stock 
Exchange at each reporting date. If required due to unusual circumstances, Trust undertakes 
reasonableness test to assess the quoted prices and does the required adjustments to quoted prices.  
 

Unquoted shares 
Unquoted investments have been designated as fair value through other comprehensive income where 
fair value has been assessed based on the valuation done by an independent valuer, Simmons Corporate 
Finance.  
 

Unrealized net change in fair value of financial assets as at balance date is $49,123,892 (2024: 
$43,406,510). 
 

Determining fair values 
 
The Trust measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of 
the inputs used in making the measurements: 
 

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in active market for an identical instrument. 
 

Level 2: Valuation technique based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly 
(i.e., derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using quoted market prices in 
active market for similar instrument; quoted prices for identical or similar instrument in the market 
that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are 
directly or indirectly observable from market data. 
 

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all 
instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the 
unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes 
instruments that are valued based on quoted price for similar instruments where significant 
unobservable adjustments or assumption are required to reflect differences between the instruments. 
Fair values of financial assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted prices or dealer 
price quotations. For unlisted equity investments, the Trust determines fair values using valuation 
techniques. Some or all of the significant inputs these valuations use may not be observable in the 
market and are derived from market prices or rates or are estimated based on assumptions. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 8. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE  
 INCOME (CONT’D) 
 

Determining fair values (cont’d) 
 

Valuation models that employ significant unobservable inputs require a higher degree of management 
judgment and estimation in the determination of fair value. Management judgment and estimation are 
usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation model to be used and any key assumptions 
used in those valuation models such as appropriate price/earnings ratios.  
 

The table below analyses financial assets measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period, by 
the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized: 
 

 Level 1 
$ 

Level 2 
$ 

Level 3 
$ 

Total 
$ 

At 30 June 2025     
Listed equities 85,961,702 1,883,038 - 87,844,740 
Shares in unlisted entities - 1,288,650 32,554,886 33,843,536 
Units in mutual funds - 5,240,512 - 5,240,512 
Government bonds - 12,065,933 - 12,065,933 
Corporate bonds - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 
 85,961,702 25,478,133 32,554,886 143,994,721 
     

At 30 June 2024     
Listed equities 65,842,706 - - 65,842,706 
Shares in unlisted entities - 2,000,000 34,173,137 36,173,137 
Units in mutual funds - 5,075,796 - 5,075,796 
Government bonds - 10,205,670 - 10,205,670 
Corporate bonds - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 
 65,842,706 22,281,466 34,173,137 122,297,309 
     

 

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values 
as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.  
 

Type Valuation Technique 
Significant 
unobservable 
inputs 

Inter-relationship between 
significant unobservable inputs 
and fair value measurements  

    

Shares in 
unlisted 
entities 

Dividend’s capitalization technique 
– The valuation model is based on 
the future maintainable dividends 
and capitalization rates.  
 
Shares in Fiji Gas Pte Limited are 
valued at the counter price as at 
reporting date. 
 
Shares held in mutual funds are 
valued at the exit price as at 
reporting date.  

Forecasted 
dividend yield 
5.5% to 9% (2024: 
5.5% to 9%) 

The estimated fair value would 
increase / (decrease) if any of the 
significant unobservable inputs 
were changed. Generally, a 
change in the growth rate is 
accompanied by directionally 
similar change in future 
maintainable dividends and 
earnings.  

Government 
bonds 

Market comparison – The fair value 
of the long-term investment 
securities is based on market prices 
published by the Reserve Bank of 
Fiji. 

Not applicable Not applicable 

 

   
Corporate 
bonds 

Carrying value of bonds 
approximate its fair value at 
reporting date. 

Not applicable Not applicable 

 
Fair value of assets included in Level 3 are based on independent valuation conducted by Simmons 
Corporate Finance Limited. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 8. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD AT FAIR VALUE  
 THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  2025 2024 
                  $              $ 

Listed equities     
Shares quoted on stock exchanges:    

South Pacific Stock Exchange  69,542,575 51,206,558 
Australian Securities Exchange  3,442,428 2,616,457 
PNG’s National Stock Exchange  14,859,737 12,019,691 

    

  87,844,740 65,842,706 
    

Unlisted equities    
Shares in unlisted entities  33,843,536 36,173,137 
Quoted managed fund  5,240,512 5,075,796 
    

  39,084,048 41,248,933 
Bonds    
Fiji Government Bonds  12,065,933 10,205,670 
Corporate Bonds  5,000,000 5,000,000 
    

  17,065,933 15,205,670 
    

Total financial assets held at fair value through other 
  comprehensive income 

 
 

 
143,994,721 

 
122,297,309 

 

Quoted shares 
 

Consistent with established practice in Fiji, listed equity investments are measured at the closing share 
price on the South Pacific Stock Exchange, Australian Securities Exchange and PNG’s National Stock 
Exchange at each reporting date. If required due to unusual circumstances, Trust undertakes 
reasonableness test to assess the quoted prices and does the required adjustments to quoted prices.  
 

Unquoted shares 
Unquoted investments have been designated as fair value through other comprehensive income where 
fair value has been assessed based on the valuation done by an independent valuer, Simmons Corporate 
Finance.  
 

Unrealized net change in fair value of financial assets as at balance date is $49,123,892 (2024: 
$43,406,510). 
 

Determining fair values 
 
The Trust measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of 
the inputs used in making the measurements: 
 

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in active market for an identical instrument. 
 

Level 2: Valuation technique based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly 
(i.e., derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using quoted market prices in 
active market for similar instrument; quoted prices for identical or similar instrument in the market 
that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are 
directly or indirectly observable from market data. 
 

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all 
instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the 
unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes 
instruments that are valued based on quoted price for similar instruments where significant 
unobservable adjustments or assumption are required to reflect differences between the instruments. 
Fair values of financial assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted prices or dealer 
price quotations. For unlisted equity investments, the Trust determines fair values using valuation 
techniques. Some or all of the significant inputs these valuations use may not be observable in the 
market and are derived from market prices or rates or are estimated based on assumptions. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 8. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE  
 INCOME (CONT’D) 
 

Determining fair values (cont’d) 
 

Valuation models that employ significant unobservable inputs require a higher degree of management 
judgment and estimation in the determination of fair value. Management judgment and estimation are 
usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation model to be used and any key assumptions 
used in those valuation models such as appropriate price/earnings ratios.  
 

The table below analyses financial assets measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period, by 
the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized: 
 

 Level 1 
$ 

Level 2 
$ 

Level 3 
$ 

Total 
$ 

At 30 June 2025     
Listed equities 85,961,702 1,883,038 - 87,844,740 
Shares in unlisted entities - 1,288,650 32,554,886 33,843,536 
Units in mutual funds - 5,240,512 - 5,240,512 
Government bonds - 12,065,933 - 12,065,933 
Corporate bonds - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 
 85,961,702 25,478,133 32,554,886 143,994,721 
     

At 30 June 2024     
Listed equities 65,842,706 - - 65,842,706 
Shares in unlisted entities - 2,000,000 34,173,137 36,173,137 
Units in mutual funds - 5,075,796 - 5,075,796 
Government bonds - 10,205,670 - 10,205,670 
Corporate bonds - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 
 65,842,706 22,281,466 34,173,137 122,297,309 
     

 

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values 
as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.  
 

Type Valuation Technique 
Significant 
unobservable 
inputs 

Inter-relationship between 
significant unobservable inputs 
and fair value measurements  

    

Shares in 
unlisted 
entities 

Dividend’s capitalization technique 
– The valuation model is based on 
the future maintainable dividends 
and capitalization rates.  
 
Shares in Fiji Gas Pte Limited are 
valued at the counter price as at 
reporting date. 
 
Shares held in mutual funds are 
valued at the exit price as at 
reporting date.  

Forecasted 
dividend yield 
5.5% to 9% (2024: 
5.5% to 9%) 

The estimated fair value would 
increase / (decrease) if any of the 
significant unobservable inputs 
were changed. Generally, a 
change in the growth rate is 
accompanied by directionally 
similar change in future 
maintainable dividends and 
earnings.  

Government 
bonds 

Market comparison – The fair value 
of the long-term investment 
securities is based on market prices 
published by the Reserve Bank of 
Fiji. 

Not applicable Not applicable 

 

   
Corporate 
bonds 

Carrying value of bonds 
approximate its fair value at 
reporting date. 

Not applicable Not applicable 

 
Fair value of assets included in Level 3 are based on independent valuation conducted by Simmons 
Corporate Finance Limited. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 

NOTE 8. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE  
  INCOME (CONT’D) 
 

Determining fair values (cont’d) 
 

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for Level 
3 fair value hierarchy: 
  

  2025 2024 
                  $                 $ 
    

Balance as at 1 July  34,173,137 28,124,375 
    

Acquisitions  - 3,000,000 
Transfer into Level 1 from Level 3 (i)  (3,000,000) - 
Disposal  - (479,988) 
Gain included in OCI- Net change in fair value  1,381,749 3,528,750 

 

Balance as at 30 June  32,554,886 34,173,137 
 

(i) During the year ended 30 June 2025, an investee company was listed on a stock exchange. As a 
result of the availability of quoted market prices, the fair value measurement for this 
investment has been transferred from Level 3 to Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. The transfer 
reflects the change in the observability of inputs used in the valuation and occurred as of the 
date the investee company became publicly listed. 

 
Sensitivity analysis  
 

For the fair values of equity securities categorized as Level 3, a reasonably possible change of 5% 
decreased in the capitalization rates at the reporting date to the forecasted dividend yield holding 
other inputs constant would have the following effect: 
 

Increase in Other Comprehensive Income  1,627,744 1,708,657 
 

An increase in the capitalization rate of 5% at 30 June 2025 would have resulted in an equal but opposite 
effect to the amounts shown above. 
 

NOTE 9. NET INCOME AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION    
    

Final distribution payable to unit holders  3,609,877 3,564,414 
    
    

NOTE 10. PAYABLES    
    

Trust clearing  224,845 163,889 
Sundry creditors  400,446 173,353 
Accruals  54,814 52,735 

    
  680,105 389,977 
NOTE 11. UNIT HOLDERS’ EQUITY    

    

Unit holders' equity – 217,778,059 units (2024: 177,910,435 
units) 

 
 184,573,228 

 
134,224,069 

    
 

NOTE 12. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 
    

Contingent liabilities    
    

The Trustee and the Manager are not aware of any contingent liabilities at balance date (2024: $Nil).  
    

Capital commitments    
    

There were no capital commitments at balance date (2024: $Nil). 
 

Operating lease commitments 
 

There were no operating lease commitments at balance date (2024: $Nil). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 

NOTE 8. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE  
  INCOME (CONT’D) 
 

Determining fair values (cont’d) 
 

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for Level 
3 fair value hierarchy: 
  

  2025 2024 
                  $                 $ 
    

Balance as at 1 July  34,173,137 28,124,375 
    

Acquisitions  - 3,000,000 
Transfer into Level 1 from Level 3 (i)  (3,000,000) - 
Disposal  - (479,988) 
Gain included in OCI- Net change in fair value  1,381,749 3,528,750 

 

Balance as at 30 June  32,554,886 34,173,137 
 

(i) During the year ended 30 June 2025, an investee company was listed on a stock exchange. As a 
result of the availability of quoted market prices, the fair value measurement for this 
investment has been transferred from Level 3 to Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. The transfer 
reflects the change in the observability of inputs used in the valuation and occurred as of the 
date the investee company became publicly listed. 

 
Sensitivity analysis  
 

For the fair values of equity securities categorized as Level 3, a reasonably possible change of 5% 
decreased in the capitalization rates at the reporting date to the forecasted dividend yield holding 
other inputs constant would have the following effect: 
 

Increase in Other Comprehensive Income  1,627,744 1,708,657 
 

An increase in the capitalization rate of 5% at 30 June 2025 would have resulted in an equal but opposite 
effect to the amounts shown above. 
 

NOTE 9. NET INCOME AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION    
    

Final distribution payable to unit holders  3,609,877 3,564,414 
    
    

NOTE 10. PAYABLES    
    

Trust clearing  224,845 163,889 
Sundry creditors  400,446 173,353 
Accruals  54,814 52,735 

    
  680,105 389,977 
NOTE 11. UNIT HOLDERS’ EQUITY    

    

Unit holders' equity – 217,778,059 units (2024: 177,910,435 
units) 

 
 184,573,228 

 
134,224,069 

    
 

NOTE 12. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 
    

Contingent liabilities    
    

The Trustee and the Manager are not aware of any contingent liabilities at balance date (2024: $Nil).  
    

Capital commitments    
    

There were no capital commitments at balance date (2024: $Nil). 
 

Operating lease commitments 
 

There were no operating lease commitments at balance date (2024: $Nil). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    

    

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balance with bank.  Cash and cash equivalents 
included in the statement of cash flow comprise the following statement of financial position amounts: 
    

  2025 2024 
                  $                $ 
Cash at bank    46,471,345   22,421,885 
    

Total cash and cash equivalents  46,471,345 22,421,885 
    

NOTE 14. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 
 

(a) Identity of related parties 
 

Manager 
 

The Manager of the Trust is FHL Fund Management Limited ("FFML"). The directors of FFML during the 
year were: 
 

Mr. Alphonsus Pio Nataniela           
Mr. Naushad Ali 
Ms. Anaisi Mataitoga          
Mr. Josua Satavu                 -   Resigned on 29 May 2025      
Mr. Pretesh Prasad      -   Appointed on 07 May 2025  
Mrs. Mereia Volavola                 -   Resigned on 07 May 2025  
 

Trustee 
 

The Trustee of the Trust is FHL Trustees Limited ("FTL"). The directors of FTL during the year were: 
 

Mr. Inia Naiyaga (Chairman)  
Mr. Navin Raj 
Mr. Deve Toganivalu                      -   Appointed on 30 April 2025    
Mr. Emitai Boladuadua      -   Resigned on 30 April 2025    
 

Others 
 

The Trust holds investments with companies in the Fijian Holdings Group, including Fijian Holdings 
Limited, Merchant Finance Pte Limited and RB Patel Group Limited. FHL Stockbrokers Limited acts as 
broker for the Trust’s listed investments. 
 

(b) Transactions with related parties  
 

(i) Transactions with Fijian Holdings Limited and its related parties  
 

Related party Nature of transaction  2025 2024 
                        $                      $ 
     

Fijian Holdings Limited Distributions   (245,390)  (238,334) 
 Interest income  180,000 180,000 
FHL Fund Management Limited Management fees  (2,047,169) (1,620,173) 
 Manager’s entry, rounding 

fees and other expenses 
  

(2,219,590) 
 

(1,004,434) 
 Distributions  (31,617) (29,930) 
 Commission fees  42,386 38,524 
Pacific Cement Pte Limited Interest income  - 30,365 
FHL Stockbrokers Limited Stock broking fees  110,900 35,290 
 Distribution  2,727 2,582 
RB Patel Group Limited Dividend income  186,446 301,672 
Pernix (Fiji) Pte Limited Interest income  - 61,562 
Golden Manufacturers Pte Limited Dividend income  - 675,000 
Merchant Finance Pte Limited Interest income  487,904 293,649 
 Dividend income  2,100,000 1,950,000 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 14. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT’D) 
 
(b) Transactions with related parties (cont’d) 
 
(ii) FHL Trustees Limited ("FTL") 
 
Trustee fees payable to FHL Trustees Limited has been fixed at $50,000 per annum.  
 

During the year, fees to FHL Trustees Limited amounted to $50,000 (2024: $50,000). 
 

(iii) Owing by related parties   2025 2024 
                 $                $ 
    
Merchant Finance Pte Limited  19,117 921,996 
Golden Manufacturers Pte Limited  - 675,000 
FHL Fund Management Limited 
FHL Stockbrokers Pte Limited                                                                   

 7,132 
- 

1,604 
2,148,794 

    
  26,249 3,747,394 
    

(iv) Owing to related parties     
    
Owing to FHL Fund Management Limited  400,449 173,353 
Owing to FHL Trustees Limited  2,083 2,083 

    
  402,532 175,436 
    

(v) Term deposits / Corporate Bonds    
    
Fijian Holdings Limited  5,000,000 5,000,000 
Merchant Finance Pte Limited  18,200,000 11,700,000 

    
  23,200,000 16,700,000 
    

(vi) Shares in related parties    
    

Listed securities    
RB Patel Group Limited  24,723,717 10,474,902 
Fiji Television Limited  539,761 1,799,204 
    
  25,263,478 12,274,106 
 
Unlisted securities    
Merchant Finance Pte Limited  27,100,137 24,040,137 
Golden Manufacturers Pte Limited  5,454,750 7,133,000 
    

  32,554,887 31,173,137 
 
 
NOTE 15. TRUST DETAILS 
 
Date of formation 
 
The Trust was established on 27 April 2001 and has a life of 60 years from its inception. 
 
Registered office and principal place of business 
 
The Trust’s registered office and principal place of business is located at Level 6, Vanua Arcade, 77 
Victoria Parade, Suva. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 14. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT’D) 
 
(b) Transactions with related parties (cont’d) 
 
(ii) FHL Trustees Limited ("FTL") 
 
Trustee fees payable to FHL Trustees Limited has been fixed at $50,000 per annum.  
 

During the year, fees to FHL Trustees Limited amounted to $50,000 (2024: $50,000). 
 

(iii) Owing by related parties   2025 2024 
                 $                $ 
    
Merchant Finance Pte Limited  19,117 921,996 
Golden Manufacturers Pte Limited  - 675,000 
FHL Fund Management Limited 
FHL Stockbrokers Pte Limited                                                                   

 7,132 
- 

1,604 
2,148,794 

    
  26,249 3,747,394 
    

(iv) Owing to related parties     
    
Owing to FHL Fund Management Limited  400,449 173,353 
Owing to FHL Trustees Limited  2,083 2,083 

    
  402,532 175,436 
    

(v) Term deposits / Corporate Bonds    
    
Fijian Holdings Limited  5,000,000 5,000,000 
Merchant Finance Pte Limited  18,200,000 11,700,000 

    
  23,200,000 16,700,000 
    

(vi) Shares in related parties    
    

Listed securities    
RB Patel Group Limited  24,723,717 10,474,902 
Fiji Television Limited  539,761 1,799,204 
    
  25,263,478 12,274,106 
 
Unlisted securities    
Merchant Finance Pte Limited  27,100,137 24,040,137 
Golden Manufacturers Pte Limited  5,454,750 7,133,000 
    

  32,554,887 31,173,137 
 
 
NOTE 15. TRUST DETAILS 
 
Date of formation 
 
The Trust was established on 27 April 2001 and has a life of 60 years from its inception. 
 
Registered office and principal place of business 
 
The Trust’s registered office and principal place of business is located at Level 6, Vanua Arcade, 77 
Victoria Parade, Suva. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 16.  EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE 
 
In July 2025, the directors declared the final dividend of $3,527,669 for the year ended 30 June 2025.  
 
Apart from this there has been no transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the 
opinion of the directors, to affect significantly the operations of the Trust, the results of those 
operations or state of affairs of the Trust in subsequent financial year. 
 
 
NOTE 17.  RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES 
 
The Trust has exposure to the following risks: 
 
• Market risk; 
• Operational risk; 
• Credit risk; and 
• Liquidity risk  
 
This note presents information about the Trust's exposure to each of the above risks, the Trust's 
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Trust's management of 
funds. 
 
The Manager has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Trust's risk 
management framework. The Trust's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse 
the risks faced by the Trust, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and 
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes 
in market conditions and the Trust's activities. 
 
Market risk 
 
(i) Interest rate 
 
This is the risk borne by interest bearing assets such as term deposits, loans and bonds due to the 
changes in interest rate. Through its investment policy the Trust will aim to balance its portfolio 
through short term deposits and medium to long term government bonds and loans. At the reporting 
date the interest rate profile of the Trust’s interest bearing financial instruments carrying amounts 
were: 
 
Fixed rate instrument  2025 2024 
                $                 $ 
Term deposits  45,517,014 31,039,368 
Bonds  17,065,933 15,205,670 
    
  62,582,947 46,245,038 

Fair value sensitivity analysis 
 
The Trust does not account for any financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 
Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect the profit. 
 
(ii) Foreign exchange risk 
 
The Trust is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency exposures since it has shares in 
Australian Securities Exchange and PNG National Stock Exchange.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 17.  RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 
Market risk (cont’d) 
 
(ii) Foreign exchange risk (cont’d) 
 
The foreign currency exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognized assets 
and liabilities. Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognized assets 
or liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the Fiji dollar. For significant settlements the  
Trust is required to seek quotations from recognized banks and use the most favorable exchange rate 
for purposes of the settlement. 
 
The carrying amount of the Trust’s significant foreign currency denominated monetary assets at the 
end of the reporting year are as follows: 
 

                2025     2024 
               FJD $     FJD $ 
Assets – Foreign equities     
AUD         3,442,428   2,616,457 
PGK      14,859,737  12,019,691 
 
A strengthening or weakening of the Fiji Dollar against the AUD and PGK at the reporting date would 
have increased / decreased net assets by the amount shown below. This analysis is based on foreign 
currency exchange rate variances that the Trust considers to be reasonably possible at the reporting 
date. The analysis assumes that all other variables are constant. 
     
10% increase in PGK  (1,350,885) (1,092,699) 
10% decrease in PGK  1,651,082 1,335,521 
10% increase in AUD  (312,948) (227,258) 
10% decrease in AUD           382,492          277,760 

 
(iii) Price Risk 

 
Price risk is the risk that the value of an investment will fluctuate as a result of changes in market 
prices, whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting  
all instruments traded in the market. Different investments (cash, shares, bonds) tend to perform 
differently under the same operating environment. 
 
Sensitivity analysis  
 
The table below sets out the effect on net assets attributable to unit holders and profit or loss of a 
reasonably possible weakening in the individual equity market prices of listed equities of 5% at 30 June. 
The estimates are made on an individual investment basis. The analysis assumes that all other 
variables, in particular interest and foreign currency rates, remain constant. 
 
Net loss from exchange-traded equity investments  4,392,237 3,292,135 

 
A strengthening in the individual equity market price of 5% at 30th June would have resulted in an 
equal but opposite effect to the amounts shown above. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 
 
 
NOTE 17.  RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 
Market risk (cont’d) 
 
(ii) Foreign exchange risk (cont’d) 
 
The foreign currency exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognized assets 
and liabilities. Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognized assets 
or liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the Fiji dollar. For significant settlements the  
Trust is required to seek quotations from recognized banks and use the most favorable exchange rate 
for purposes of the settlement. 
 
The carrying amount of the Trust’s significant foreign currency denominated monetary assets at the 
end of the reporting year are as follows: 
 

                2025     2024 
               FJD $     FJD $ 
Assets – Foreign equities     
AUD         3,442,428   2,616,457 
PGK      14,859,737  12,019,691 
 
A strengthening or weakening of the Fiji Dollar against the AUD and PGK at the reporting date would 
have increased / decreased net assets by the amount shown below. This analysis is based on foreign 
currency exchange rate variances that the Trust considers to be reasonably possible at the reporting 
date. The analysis assumes that all other variables are constant. 
     
10% increase in PGK  (1,350,885) (1,092,699) 
10% decrease in PGK  1,651,082 1,335,521 
10% increase in AUD  (312,948) (227,258) 
10% decrease in AUD           382,492          277,760 

 
(iii) Price Risk 

 
Price risk is the risk that the value of an investment will fluctuate as a result of changes in market 
prices, whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting  
all instruments traded in the market. Different investments (cash, shares, bonds) tend to perform 
differently under the same operating environment. 
 
Sensitivity analysis  
 
The table below sets out the effect on net assets attributable to unit holders and profit or loss of a 
reasonably possible weakening in the individual equity market prices of listed equities of 5% at 30 June. 
The estimates are made on an individual investment basis. The analysis assumes that all other 
variables, in particular interest and foreign currency rates, remain constant. 
 
Net loss from exchange-traded equity investments  4,392,237 3,292,135 

 
A strengthening in the individual equity market price of 5% at 30th June would have resulted in an 
equal but opposite effect to the amounts shown above. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

 
 

NOTE 17.  RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 
Operational risk 
  
(i) Legal risk 
 

Legal risks refer to the risk of being legally non-compliant due to changes in Government and 
Regulators' current policies and regulations. 
 
The Manager has an independent compliance officer who reports directly to the FHL Group Chief 
Executive Officer and the Compliance Committee. The Manager monitors changes to regulations for 
compliance and implementation of market best practices. 
 
(ii) Operational risk 
 

Operational risk is defined as the risk arising from the Trust’s and its related entities business functions 
and from the practical implementation of the Manager’s strategy for growing the Trust. 
 
The Manager has developed an operations manual to deal with all operational processes in line with 
necessary regulations. 
 
The Manager also conducts third party due diligence on new investments. 

 
(iii) Data risk 
 
This is the risk of losing information including unit holder account details even though there is a dual 
system storage of a hard copy filing system and electronic database. 
 
The manager ensures confidentiality and security of all unit holders' information. The trust has 
developed a database system to store more information, conducts daily backups of electronic 
information and has developed a disaster recovery plan. 
 
(iv) Performance 
 
This relates to the risk that the Manager's investment selection may not achieve the objective of the 
Trust or produce acceptable returns for unit holders. 
 
All unit holders (including potential ones) are fully informed of the risks involved. 
 
(v) Conflicts of interests 
 
Conflicts of interests between the Trust, Fijian Holdings Limited ("FHL"), FHL Fund Management Limited 
("FFML") and FHL Trustees Limited ("FTL") may exist and also arise in the future in a number of areas 
relating to FHL past and on-going relationships, including potential acquisition or dispositions of 
business or real properties, payment of dividends and FHL and FFML management arrangements. 
 
Under the Trust Deed, written approval is required from the Trustee for any Trust dealings with the 
associates of the Manager. 
 
(vi) Political climate 
 
The Trust operates in Fiji and changes to governments and the policies they implement may affect the 
overall economic situation and ultimately the returns of the Trust. To address this, the Trust reviews 
its pricing and investment portfolios regularly and responds to change in policies appropriately. In 
addition, changes to the Government’s tax policies may impact on the returns of the Trust. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

 
 

NOTE 17.  RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 
Credit risk 
 
This refers to the risk of losing investment funds due to companies and financial institutions in which 
the Trust has provided loans, defaulting on their repayments of principal or interest or both. 
 
The Trust will minimize risk by conducting thorough due diligence on any investments it makes, ensure 
that there are guarantees on these investments by principal stakeholders or sister companies, limit the 
amount that is given as loans and implement certain conditions to allow the Trust to collect the funds. 
 
The carrying amount of the financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was: 
 
  2025 2024 
                 $                $ 
    
Cash and cash equivalents  46,471,345 22,421,885 
Term deposits  45,517,014 31,039,368 
Bonds  17,065,933 15,205,670 
Other receivables  2,004,022 5,826,408 

    
  111,058,314 74,493,331 
 
Liquidity risk 
 
This is the risk that the Trust will not be able to facilitate its unit holders’ redemption request. The 
Trust aims to maintain a buffer fund in liquid assets at all times to meet expected normal redemptions. 
Under the Trust Deed, the manager, with the concurrence of the Trustee, may suspend the redemption 
of units for such time as may be necessary to realize sufficient liquid funds to meet any unusual 
redemption requests.  The Trust managers its liquidity risk by investing at least 30% of total portfolio 
into short term deposit.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT’D] 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

 
 

NOTE 17.  RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 
Credit risk 
 
This refers to the risk of losing investment funds due to companies and financial institutions in which 
the Trust has provided loans, defaulting on their repayments of principal or interest or both. 
 
The Trust will minimize risk by conducting thorough due diligence on any investments it makes, ensure 
that there are guarantees on these investments by principal stakeholders or sister companies, limit the 
amount that is given as loans and implement certain conditions to allow the Trust to collect the funds. 
 
The carrying amount of the financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was: 
 
  2025 2024 
                 $                $ 
    
Cash and cash equivalents  46,471,345 22,421,885 
Term deposits  45,517,014 31,039,368 
Bonds  17,065,933 15,205,670 
Other receivables  2,004,022 5,826,408 

    
  111,058,314 74,493,331 
 
Liquidity risk 
 
This is the risk that the Trust will not be able to facilitate its unit holders’ redemption request. The 
Trust aims to maintain a buffer fund in liquid assets at all times to meet expected normal redemptions. 
Under the Trust Deed, the manager, with the concurrence of the Trustee, may suspend the redemption 
of units for such time as may be necessary to realize sufficient liquid funds to meet any unusual 
redemption requests.  The Trust managers its liquidity risk by investing at least 30% of total portfolio 
into short term deposit.
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CORPORATE STATEMENTS

OUR VISION

To be a trusted partner for our unit holders and the leading Managed Fund in the South Pacific.

OUR MISSION

We aspire to be the market leader in managed funds by exceeding our customer’s expectations at all times. 

We will grow our managed fund portfolio and provide our unit holders and shareholders with the maximum sustainable return on their investment. We 
will aspire to have the best corporate governance standards and practices.

CORE BUSINESS

To maximize unit holders’ wealth through the high-quality investment products that are affordable and offer competitive returns and in doing so 
maximize our shareholders’ values.

ORGANISATIONAL VALUES

PASSION – all employees are passionate:

• About work we do and take pride in delivering the best in all we do.

• Developing the right capabilities to unlock our strategic directions.

• About positively contributing to society by building meaningful relationships to grow our impact into society.

INTEGRITY – all employees must:
 

• Act with fairness, honesty, transparency and accountability.

• Foster diversity, ethics and inclusion in all function of our business.

• Passionate about work and take pride in delivering the best in all we do. 

INNOVATION – all employees:
 

 · Are to change the way we lead the Company into the future to explore new opportunity and challenge current ways of working.

 · Will need to come out of our comfort zones in order to change.

COURAGE – all employees: 

 · Are not afraid to responsibly speak up, collaborate for solutions, act and make a valuable difference.

 · Boldly execute our ambitions and fully own tough decisions that we make.



“Your Goals. Our Strategy”

ANNUAL REPORT
2025

MANAGER
FHL Fund Management Limited (FHL FML)
Contact: (679) 892 6839 / 999 4317
                 (679) 892 6825
Fax: (679) 331 7153
Email: info@fhut.com.fj

REGISTERED OFFICE
Suva Office
Level 6, Vanua House
77 Victoria Parade, Suva
Contact: (679) 892 6839 / 999 4317
                 (679) 892 6825

Lautoka Office
2nd Floor, Shop 6 Challenge Plaza,
Naviti Street,
Lautoka
Contact: (679) 998 2560 / 998 0769

Labasa Office
2nd Floor, Trikams Building,
Main Street,
Nasekula Road,
Labasa
Contact: (679) 992 2417

POSTAL ADDRESS
FHL Fund Management Limited
P. O. Box 2110
Government Buildings
Suva, Fiji

Auditor
BDO
Chartered Accountants
Level 10, FNPF Place,
343 Victoria Parade, Suva
Contact: (679) 331 4300
Email: info@bdo.com.fj

FHL FML Directors
Mr. Alphonsus Pio - Chairperson
Mr. Naushad Ali
Mr. Pretesh Prasad
Ms. Anaisi Mataitoga

Trustee
FHL Trustees Limited (FTL)
Level 6, Vanua House
77 Victoria Parade, Suva
P. O. Box 2110
Government Buildings
Suva, Fiji
Contact: (679) 892 6839 / 892 6825
Fax: (679) 331 7153

FTL Directors
Mr. Inia Naiyaga - Chairperson
Mr. Deve Toganivalu
Mr. Vula Vakacegu

Regulator
Reserve Bank of Fiji
Pratt Street, Suva
Private Mail Bag
Suva, Fiji
Contact: (679) 892 6839
Fax: (679) 330 4363

Investor Relations
You can obtain information about investing with the 
Fijian Holdings Unit Trust by contacting our licensed 
unit trust representatives via:
Contact: (679) 892 6839 / 892 6825
Fax: (679) 331 7153
Email: info@fhut.com.fj
Web address: www.fhut.com.fj

You can also contact or visit us at our registered office 
listed above.

Business Hours:
8:00am – 5:00pm Monday – Thursday
8:00am – 4:00pm Friday

Principal Bankers
BSP Financial Group Limited,
Level 3, BSP Life Centre,
3 Scott Street,
Suva.


